
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

 
 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

Agenda 
 
Thursday, 25 February 2021 
7.30 pm, Remote - Via Microsoft Teams - the public are welcome to observe 
via the Council's website at https://lewisham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
For more information contact: John Bardens (02083149976) 
 
This meeting is an open meeting and all items on the agenda may be audio 
recorded and/or filmed. 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2021 

 
3 - 8 

2.   Declarations of interest 
 

9 - 12 

3.   Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 

4.   Adult social care review update 
 

13 - 30 

5.   Better Care Fund review update 
 

31 - 38 

6.   Select Committee work programme 
 

39 - 56 

Public Document Pack



 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 
Members 

 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting 
to be held on Thursday, 25 February 2021.  
 
Kim Wright, Chief Executive 

Wednesday, 17 February 2021 
 
  

Councillor John Muldoon (Chair)  

Councillor Coral Howard (Vice-Chair)  

Councillor Kim Powell  

Councillor Leo Gibbons  

Councillor Sue Hordijenko  

Councillor Alan Smith  

Councillor Bill Brown (ex-Officio)  

Councillor Sophie Davis (ex-Officio)  
  

   



 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES 
SELECT COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 13 January 2021 at 7.30 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors John Muldoon (Chair), Coral Howard (Vice-Chair), Kim Powell, 
Leo Gibbons, Sue Hordijenko and Alan Smith. 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Sophie Davis (Vice Chair Overview & Scrutiny), David 
Austin (Acting Chief Finance Officer), Tom Brown (Executive Director for Community 
Services), Councillor Chris Best (Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care), Dee Carlin (Head of Joint Commissioning) (LCCG/LBL), Georgina 
Nunney (Principal Lawyer) and Councillor Jacq Paschoud. 
 
1. Minutes of the meeting held on 11 November 2020 

 
Resolved: the minutes of the last meeting were agreed as a true record. 
 

2. Declarations of interest 
 
The following non-pecuniary interest was declared: 
 
Cllr Jacq Paschoud has a close family member in receipt of a package of adult 
social care. 
 

3. Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
 
There were none. 
 

4. Budget cuts 
 
Tom Brown (Executive Director for Community Services) introduced the budget 
cuts report and the following key points were noted: 

4.1 The council continues to do everything it can to support residents and 
business during the pandemic and despite prudent financial management we 
are forced to confront a huge budget gap. 

4.2 This is the result of a decade of government cuts and underfunding which has 
seen the council’s budget reduced by 50%. Across the country the local 
government funding gap is more than £4bn. 

4.3 The proposals being discussed aim to prioritise protection of frontline services 
and transforming the way the council works, but there will be reductions in 
some services and deletion of some posts. 

4.4 Over the next 3 years the majority of cuts will be delivered by continuing to 
transform the way the council works. 

4.5 The local government settlement was marginally better than expected, but the 
council still needs to find around £28m of cuts in the coming financial year. The 
Round 1 cuts agreed in December provide £15m of the £28m needed. The 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 
 
 

2 

cuts being considered in this round provide £13m and if accepted in full would 
close the budget gap for the coming financial year. 

4.6 Covid continues to cast uncertainty on local government finances. Although 
the government has confirmed that some income losses will be funded the 
council remains very concerned about the ongoing pressures of the pandemic. 
There have been no assurances from government about funding into 2021/22. 

4.7 There are significant concerns about the impact on the economy with many 
local businesses currently relying on grants and rate relief. The end of the 
furlough scheme may also see a rise in unemployment and more demand for 
council services. There will also be a significant impact on our partners, in 
particular health and social care providers and schools. 

4.8 Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care, 
Councillor Best, commented that the government’s austerity agenda has 
continued to get worse and that continuing to increasing the adult social care 
precept is not fair or sustainable solution. Cllr Best said that the government 
urgently needs to fix the funding model for adult social care. 

Tom Brown (Executive Director for Community Services) introduced each of the 
budget cuts. The committee discussed each of the proposals and the following key 
points were made: 

B-11 - Improved usage of BCF Funding across partners 

4.9 The Better Care Fund is being reviewed to get best value. The fund itself won’t 
go down, but the way it is deployed will allow cost pressures elsewhere to be 
offset and release some savings. 

4.10 A progress update on the review will be brought the next meeting of this 
committee. 

The committee also asked to discuss and comment on a number of Round 1 cuts 
proposals. 

B04 – smoking cessation service (Round 1) 

4.11 It was confirmed that a request has been made to the Southeast London 
CCG to pay for prescription costs associated with this service going forwards.  

4.12 The Chair asked for it to be made clear in the public communications that 
the service will continue to be funded just not by the council.   

4.13 B05 – recharging OT and housing officer costs to the Disabled Facilities 
Grant (Round 1) 

4.14 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

B08 – review of the power of attorney service (Round 1) 

4.15 The committee noted that the power of attorney service is extremely 
important to the small number of people who are supported by it, who often 
have no one else to look after their affairs and rely on the council as a last 
resort. 

4.16 The committee said that the council should be able to provide a quality fit-
for-purpose services at a fair price and recommended the council continues to 
provide the service in house at a charge. 

Page 4



 

 
 
 

3 

B09 – reduction in discretionary award of concessionary fares (Round 1) 

4.17 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

4.18 The committee queried the process around the equalities analysis of the 
cuts and how it relates to the refreshed equalities process approved by Mayor 
& Cabinet in November. 

4.19 David Austin (Director for Corporate Resources) explained that managers 
are asked to consider the equalities for each individual proposal and that from 
this a high level aggregation is drawn that highlights the key characteristics 
concerned. Potential cumulative impacts are also identified and mitigations 
considered. The council is also currently working to bring together a stronger 
policy and strategy framework for equalities.  

4.20 The committee noted that it might be helpful to get service user input or 
third party assurance of future equalities impact assessments.  

C-02 – adult learning and day opportunities (Round 1) 

4.21 The committee said that adult learning should consider operating all year 
round in order to meet the needs of service users. The service should also be 
joined up with the council to make sure there are appropriate job opportunities 
available following training and education. 

4.22 Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care, 
Councillor Best, also suggested that the council consider developing a 
corporate approach, as an employer, to employing more people with disability, 
particularly learning disability. The council should also reach out to other 
partners, in particular health, to find out about their approach.  

E-04 – introduce charging for certain elements of self-funded care packages 
(Round 1) 

4.23 The committee stressed the importance of monitoring this change carefully 
to ensure that there continues to be financial benefit for users from using the 
bulk purchasing power of the council compared to approaching a provider as 
an individual. 

4.24 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

F-06 – adults with learning disabilities and 14-25yrs transitions costs (Round 
1) 

4.25 Cllr Jacq Paschoud (under standing orders) noted that given the options 
available in Lewisham many parents are forced to seek education for their 
child or young person outside of London. The council should develop the 
services available, particularly college and sixth form education, so that 
parents aren’t pushed to look elsewhere. 

4.26 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

F09 – in house services reductions – adults passenger transport (Round 1) 

4.27 As part of a strategic review of transport adult social care are looking at 
what has happened since Covid and what further changes might come from 
the adult social care review to consider what services the council might need 
going forward. 

4.28 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

Page 5



 

 
 
 

4 

B-12 - Adult Learning Lewisham – back office efficiencies 

4.29 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

C-12 - weight management 

4.30 The committee asked for assurances that the outcomes of this change 
would be carefully monitored and that members of the BAME community 
would be involved in co-designing the new offer. 

4.31 Officers confirmed that outcomes would be carefully monitored and that 
BAME people would be involved in co-design.  

C-13 - Sexual and Reproductive Health Services in Primary Care 

4.32 This proposal includes plans to limit the planned increase in LARC activity 
in primary care within a new reduced budget and to decommission the “check 
yourself” online testing service as there is now an online testing service for all 
ages. 

4.33 The committee queried whether there would be any adverse impact of 
reducing LARC activity noting that Lewisham has historically has high rates of 
teenage pregnancies. 

4.34 Officers noted that there would not be a significant detriment but agreed to 
monitor the details.  

4.35 The committee also queried whether the increase in online testing capacity 
threatens the viability and capacity of in-person clinics in any way. 

4.36 It was noted that there is always the chance that the provider makes a 
change if people choose not to use one sort of service, but the council is 
planning to work with LGT to have a block contract for the provision of sexual 
health services.  It was also noted that people are also entitled to use services 
across London. 

C-14 - Substance Misuse Cuts (Public Health Budget) 

4.37 This proposal has three parts: a cut to prescribing budgets through 
negotiating with Southeast London CCG; a reduction in the number of Tier 4 
residential placements provided over the year; and a cut to the training and 
engagement budget. 

4.38 The committee queried whether the reduction in residential placements 
would add pressure to hospitals. 

4.39 Officers explained that residential placements are booked all around the 
country and that the number of places booked over the year would reduce by 
around ten. 

4.40 Cllr Jacq Paschoud (speaking under standing orders) queried whether the 
cost of not providing a service would be greater than the saving from cutting 
the service. 

4.41 Officers explained that the council would provide community-based 
treatment instead and that there is capacity to support the additional numbers. 
It was also noted that the outcomes are often better in community-based 
rehabilitation.  

4.42 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

Page 6



 

 
 
 

5 

C15 - Integrated Sexual and Reproductive Health Services 

4.43 The committee asked for assurances that the change would be monitored 
and that the communications would be fit for purpose. 

4.44 Officers noted that the council has very good links into the community which 
will help ensure the changes are monitored and communications effective. 

4.45 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

C-16 - Reduction of Management overheads for the Social Inclusion and 
Recovery Service (SLaM Lewisham Community Services) 

4.46 As the council and its partners have developed the mental health alliance 
teams have been brought together and now needs fewer managers and back 
office functions allowing resources to go to front line. 

C-17 - Re-configuration of MH Supported Housing pay – Social Interest 
Group 

4.47 This proposal is a realignment of the contract to reflect the level of 
complexity the provider is now dealing with. 

4.48 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

C-26 – Reducing leisure spend – temporary closure of the Bridge 

4.49 This proposal is to temporarily close the Bridge Leisure Centre in 
Sydenham pending the outcome of the new physical activity strategy. The 
Bridge has been closed since the Covid outbreak last March and due to 
changes to contracts is costing the council more than £500k a year to run. The 
centre also requires capital works to make it fit for purpose.  

4.50 The committee noted local concerns about the absence of any leisure 
providers in this part of the borough and in particular the reduction in services 
such as swimming for children. 

4.51 Officers noted that commitments have been made at Mayor & Cabinet to 
talk to local people and listen to their concerns to make sure their views are 
fully captured. 

4.52 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

C28 - Supported Housing Services  

4.53 This is a proposal to develop alternative provision for parent and child and 
adult placements by working closely with colleagues across the council to 
develop a better model at a lower cost.  

4.54 The committee noted this proposal without further comment. 

F-24 – ASC review 

4.55 Adult social care is the biggest single budget in the council and needs to 
make sure it is using its resources to best effect. Over last three years adult 
social care has moved towards a much more strength-based and asset-based 
approach that builds on community resilience and community resources. It has 
also built up arrangements with health partners which have delivered better 
outcomes, but there is more work that can be done. 

Page 7



 

 
 
 

6 

4.56 The committee noted that there have been concerns expressed about the 
potential for outsourcing services and asked for assurances that any future 
employees not covered by TUPE would have comparable conditions of 
service, including receiving London living wage.  

4.57 Officers noted that the decision on whether or not to outsource specific 
services will not be taken until more work has been done on the adult social 
care review.  

4.58 A progress update on the adult social care review will be brought the next 
meeting of this committee. 

Resolved: the committee agreed to refer its views to the Public Accounts Select 
Committee. 
 

5. Select Committee work programme 
 
Resolved: the committee agreed to add two additional items to the February 
agenda to consider updates on two budget cuts proposals (B-11 and F-24). 
 
 
The meeting ended at 9.30 pm 
 
 
Chair:  
 ---------------------------------------------------- 
 
Date: 
 ---------------------------------------------------- 

Page 8



 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. Members must declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. There 
are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member Code of 
Conduct: 

(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 

(2)  Other registerable interests 

(3)  Non-registerable interests. 

1.2. Further information on these is provided in the body of this report. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 

Declarations of Interest 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive (Director of Law) 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



  

3. Disclosable pecuniary interests  

3.1 These are defined by regulation as: 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or gain 

(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than by the 
Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the register in 
respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member or towards 
your election expenses (including payment or financial benefit  from a Trade 
Union). 

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they are a 
partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, services or works. 

(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 

(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which 
they have a beneficial interest.   

(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land in the 
borough; and  

(b)  either: 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person* 
has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued share capital of 
that class. 

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person 
with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

4. Other registerable interests 

4.1 The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the following 
interests: 

(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you were 
appointed or nominated by the Council 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or 
policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25. 

Page 10



  

5. Non registerable interests 

5.1. Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely to 
affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more than it 
would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is not required 
to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning 
the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

6. Declaration and impact of interest on members’ participation 

6.1. Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are present at a 
meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must declare the nature of the 
interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The 
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and 
withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest which has not 
already been entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where 
such an interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of 
up to £5000  
 

6.2. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the meeting at the earliest 
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the 
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph 6.3 
below applies. 

6.3. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member of the public in 
possession of the facts would think that their interest is so significant that it would be 
likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the 
outcome improperly. 

6.4. If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, their, 
family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the local area 
generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply 
as if it were a registerable interest.   

6.5. Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal judgement, 
though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

7. Sensitive information  

7.1. There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not be 
registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and advised to seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

8.  Exempt categories 

8.1. There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in decisions 
notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. These include:- 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter relates 
to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent or 

Page 11



  

guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless the matter 
relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which you are a 
governor 

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 

(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  

(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 

(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception). 

9. Report author and contact 

9.1. Suki Binjal, Director of Law, Governance and HR, 0208 31 47648 

Page 12



 

 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

 

 

 

Report title: Adult Social Care Review update 

Date: 25 February 2021 

Key decision: No.  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: John Bardens, Scrutiny Manager 

Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of the attached paper is to provide the Healthier Communities Select 
Committee with a comprehensive update on the council’s Adult Social Care Review 
following the committee’s recent consideration of related budget cut proposals. 

 Members of the Healthier Communities Select Committee are 
recommended to note the report.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

1. Summary 

1.1. The purpose of this paper is to provide the Healthier Communities Select Committee 
with a comprehensive update on the council’s Adult Social Care Review following the 
committee’s recent consideration of related budget cut proposals.  

2. Recommendations 

2.1. Members of the Healthier Communities Select Committee are recommended to note 
the report.  

3. Policy Context 

3.1. The Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018-2022 outlines the Council’s vision to deliver for 
residents over the next four years and includes the following priority relevant to this 
item: 

1. Delivering and defending: health, social care and support - Ensuring 
everyone receives the health, mental health, social care and support 
services they need. 

4. Financial implications  

4.1. There are no direct financial implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. 

5. Legal implications 

5.1. There are no direct legal implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. 

6. Equalities implications 

6.1. Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing the 
separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came into 
force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

6.2. The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

7. Climate change and environmental implications 

7.1. There are no direct climate change or environmental implications arising from the 
implementation of the recommendations in this report. 

8. Crime and disorder implications 

8.1. There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from the implementation of 
the recommendations in this report. 

Page 14

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

9. Health and wellbeing implications  

9.1. There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from the implementation 
of the recommendations in this report. 

10. Report contact 

10.1. John Bardens, Scrutiny Manager, john.bardens@lewisham.gov.uk 020 8314 9976 

 

Page 15

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:john.bardens@lewisham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Adult social care review
Update for Healthier Communities Select Committee

25th February 2021

P
age 17



Introduction

• A review of Adult Social Care (ASC) has been agreed to support the 
realisation of savings and to help shape the strategy for future service 
delivery.

• Procurement is currently underway to appoint an external 
management consultant service.

• This supplier will provide strategic capacity and diagnostic capability to 
deliver this review at pace.

• The following slides provide HCSC with an update on this procurement 
activity, as well as outlining our approach to the review.

P
age 18



ASC savings

• ASC has challenging savings targets that must be achieved, most of which are 
due in 2021/22.

• The bulk of these savings are identified in savings proposals relating to ASC 
demand management and service improvements (see F-01 and F-24), which 
collectively total £7.2m.

• Additional proposals linked to Day Services (C-02), Client Fees and 
Contributions (E-04), AWLD/Transitions (F-06) and Adults Passenger Services 
(F-09) equate to a further £1.5m of savings.

• Mayor and Cabinet reviewed these savings proposals on 9th December 2020 
(Round 1) and 3rd February 2021 (Round 2), with the following decisions:

Agree to proceed: 
E-04, F-01 and F-06

Consult and return: 
C-02, F-09 and F-24

P
age 19



Delivery action plan (DAP)

Action is already underway to progress the delivery of ASC savings, as set out in 
our internal Delivery Action Plan for F-01/F-024:

Continue to implement new 
ways of working to improve 

the management of 
demand from the 

community and hospital 
pathways

Modernise and transform 
building-based day centre 

provision

Improve performance and 
productivity of casework 
flow and underpin with 
leaner system processes

Ensure there are end dates 
on care plans and priority 

plans to Re-assess 
individuals’ package of care 

and support

Work with NHS partners to 
improve access to 

rehabilitative therapies and 
recovery

Assess providers in the 
market place to determine 

whether the alternative 
offer is better placed to 
meet residents’ needs

Implement improvement 
plan for short term 

enablement intervention in 
order to reduce/delay costs 

of longer term care

Improve commissioning and 
contract monitoring 

arrangements for 
domiciliary, residential and 

day care services

Continue to shift the culture 
of practice from deficit to 
strength-based model of 
assessment and support 

planning to promote 
independence

Ensure Assessment 
performance, productivity 

and unit costs are cost 
efficient through 

benchmarking against 
statistical neighbours

P
age 20



Alignment of DAP and the review

• Whilst realisation of ASC savings is not wholly contingent on the completion 
of the review, the appointed supplier is expected to contribute towards the 
delivery of these.

• They will take account of the interventions detailed in the Delivery Action 
Plan (DAP) at each stage of their analysis and address these as part of the 
overall review.

• They will also work in partnership with ASC to strengthen these 
interventions and the evidence-base underpinning them.

• However, ASC retains responsibility for the DAP and will continue to drive 
progress of this throughout the review.

P
age 21



Phased approach

• The proposed review of ASC comprises two phases:

• Only Phase 1 is subject to the current procurement process.

• Following completion of Phase 1, the review will briefly pause to assess 
whether Phase 2 can be delivered in-house.

• If Phase 2 is to be delivered by an external supplier, then further 
procurement will be undertaken in adherence with the Council’s 
Constitution.

• Phase 1 and Phase 2 may be undertaken by the same supplier.

Phase 1 – Diagnostics and delivery planning

Phase 2 – Design and implementation

P
age 22



Phase 1 – Diagnostics and delivery planning (1)

# Phase 1 supplier deliverables:

1 Work in partnership with ASC to achieve the £7m of savings in 2021/22.

2 Build a detailed understanding of potential areas for ASC service 
improvement using existing service-related intelligence, business insights, 
live studies, user experiences and stakeholder engagement.

3 Ensure that every stage of the review is data driven, evidence-led and 
linked to tangible outcomes

4 Highlight any specific barriers (including issues of capacity, capability,
policy and organisational culture) that would need to be overcome to 
implement improvements in these areas. 

5 Quantify the potential in each opportunity area and detail on the specific 
operational hurdles that must be addressed to release this potential. 

6 Build a benefits model illustrating the rate at which improvements are 
expected, and the resultant financial gains.

P
age 23



Phase 1 – Diagnostics and delivery planning (2)

# Phase 1 supplier deliverables (continued):

7 Establish an order of priority for improvement opportunities framed by 
robust rationale.

8 Develop a supporting narrative for transformational change that ASC staff 
can work consistently towards.

9 Impart skills or knowledge transfer to key council staff through mentoring 
or training opportunities throughout the lifecycle of the project.

10 Provide the identification of opportunities to either work with or train 
Lewisham officers in order that they are able to deliver part of any 
potential implementation process.

11 Develop a vision for change and create a future service offer that elected 
members and officers can have confidence in and Lewisham residents 
can understand.

12 Identify the best approach to any culture change that needs to be 
initiated and support the council in the design and roll-out of this.

P
age 24



Key supplier outputs for Phase 1

1) An independent Diagnostic Report, setting out the 
opportunities available to improve service delivery as well 
as the financial and performance benefits that could be 
realised as a result. All recommendations and conclusions 
contained within this report will be underpinned by robust 
data and clear evidence.

2) An Implementation Plan for the delivery of Phase 2 of the 
review. This will set out the strategic approach alongside 
key activities and timeline, as well as resource 
requirements, dependencies, assumptions and risks.

The appointed supplier will produce the following at the end of Phase 1:

P
age 25



Phase 2 – Design and implementation

# Phase 2 in-house/supplier deliverables:

1 Co-design solutions to the prioritised service changes through 
collaboration between key stakeholders and consultancy (if appointed).

2 Pilot solutions, whilst measuring the impact of improvements and 
continue to refine these alongside key stakeholders.

3 Fast-track implementation of preferred solutions in accordance with 
agreed timescales.

4 Ensure all service changes are sustainable and benefits (both financial 
and outcomes-based) are fully maximised and realised.

5 Identify and support the implementation of any culture change required 
to underpin the successful delivery of these service changes or new ways 
of working.

Please note that Phase 2 is NOT subject to the current tendering process

P
age 26



Stakeholder engagement and culture change

• The scope of this review be fully inclusive of all ASC services.

• Phase 1 (Diagnostic and Delivery Planning) will require staff engagement to 
explore organisational culture and current ways of working.

• Phase 2 (Design and Implementation) will expand engagement more broadly 
across service users, carers, the wider Council etc. as new opportunities are 
designed and tested.

• The supplier will engage with Lewisham Health and Care Partners throughout, 
to avoid duplication and ensure a joined-up approach.

• Helping to facilitate the required culture change as an enabler of service 
transformation is a key element of the specification for this tender.

P
age 27



Governance

• It is anticipated that the Council will set-up a Steering Group, comprised of 
relevant stakeholders to provide the appropriate oversight and assurance of 
this review.

• Due to the urgency of this review and the required pace of delivery, this 
group will meet (virtually) with the appointed supplier on a weekly basis.

• Progress on the both review and the Delivery Action Plan will be reported to 
the Service Delivery and Redesign Thematic Programme Board on a 3-
weekly basis, with escalations to the Strategic Change Board (EMT) as 
required.

• The outcome of this review will also be reported to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and Healthier Communities Select Committee.

P
age 28



Procurement timeline

P
age 29



Procurement approach

• The supplier will be commissioned through a ‘mini-competition’ process, 
using Crown Commercial Services’ (CCS) RM3745 Management Consultancy 
Framework.  

• For the purposes of procuring the intended service for this review, the 
Council will use Lot 5, Health and Community which not only covers the 
subject matter in question but also focusses on cost, commercial and 
efficiency review of public services.  

• The framework offers the services the Council requires with a wide range of 
suppliers from SME’s to multinationals offering capped rates for the 
duration of the framework and value for money by further competition.

P
age 30



 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

 

 

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

26 February 2020 – Budget report to Council 

10 June 2020 – Council’s response to COVID-19 – financial update report to M&C 

9 July 2020 – First 2020/21 financial monitoring report to M&C 

7 October 2020 – Financial stabilisation and medium term budget update report to M&C 

11 November 2020 – Round 1 Cuts proposals report to HCSC 

9 December 2020 – Round 1 Cuts proposals report to M&C 

13 January 2021 – Round 2 Cuts proposals report to HCSC 

3 February 2021 – Round 2 Cuts proposals report to M&C 

Report title: Strategic Review of the Better Care Fund and Improved 
Better Care Fund  

Date: 25 February 2021 

Key decision: No 

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Executive Director for Community Services, Executive Director for Corporate 
Resources, Director of System Transformation 

Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Healthier Communities Select Committee with 
an update on the strategic review of the Better Care Fund (BCF).   The report outlines the 
steps which have been taken by the Council and South East London CCG (the CCG) to 
identify potentially uncommitted budgets within the BCF for 2021/22, which could be 
reallocated to support proposals to generate identifiable and measurable savings (invest to 
save) in other budgets across the health and care system.  A similar piece of work is 
planned to identify potentially uncommitted budgets within the IBCF.  

Members of the Healthier Communities Select Committee are recommended to note and 
comment on activity to date and planned next steps. 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

1. Summary 

1.1. This report sets out the background and the action that has been taken to date to 
review the Better Care Fund (BCF) and the Improved Better Care Fund(IBCF).  The 
review aims to identify BCF/IBCF funding which can be released from existing 
schemes/activity and redirected to areas which would in turn reduce spend in other 
areas across the health and care system. This report updates members of the 
Healthier Communities Select Committee on the action taken to date and planned next 
steps. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members of the Healthier Communities Select Committee are recommended to note 
and comment on activity to date and next steps to review the BCF and IBCF. 

3. Policy Context  

3.1. The Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018-2022 outlines the Council’s vision to deliver for 
residents over the next four years and includes the following priority relevant to this 
item: 1. Delivering and defending: health, social care and support - Ensuring everyone 
receives the health, mental health, social care and support services they need. 

3.2. The Better Care Fund is a joint health and social care integration fund managed by the 
Council and the CCG. The strategic framework is set out in the national BCF policy 
framework and planning guidance. 

3.3. The Better Care Fund also supports the delivery of the NHS Long Term Plan.  

4. Background  

4.1. The overview of the Section 75 Agreement for the Better Care Fund and the 
management of BCF/IBCF expenditure plan are held by the Section 75 Agreement 
Management Group whose membership is drawn from representatives of the Council 
and the CCG.   Back in 2019/20, the Section 75 Agreement Management Group 
agreed that there should be a review of the BCF/IBCF schemes prior to the production 
of the 2020/21 BCF/IBCF plan.  The review was agreed to ensure that the schemes 
supported the integration and transformation of health and care and continued to 
reflect the priorities of the Lewisham Health and Care Partnership.   

4.2. The review and development of the 20/21 plan were however postponed as Health and 
Wellbeing Boards were advised that BCF policy and planning requirements would not 
be published during the initial response to the COVID-19 pandemic. In the meantime 
HWBs were advised to prioritise continuity of provision, social care capacity and 
system resilience and to continue to focus spend on locally agreed priorities pending 
further guidance. It was therefore agreed that the BCF spend for 20/21 would continue 
to support the 19/20 schemes that had been previously agreed.  On 3 December 2020, 
the Government advised that BCF plans would not need to be submitted to NHS 
England and NHS Improvement for approval in 2020/21. 

4.3. The previously planned review of the BCF/IBCF has now been resumed.  The review 
will now inform the development of the 21/22 BCF/IBCF plan and deliver the 
commitment made to the Council’s Mayor and Cabinet to review the BCF/IBCF.  The 
review aims to identify BCF/IBCF funding which can be released from existing 
schemes/activity and redirected to areas which would reduce spend in other areas 
across the health and care system. 

 

Page 32

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

5. The BCF Plan 2021/22 

5.1. As in previous years, all Health and Wellbeing Boards in England will be required to 
agree a plan for the use of pooled funding to support integrated health and care 
services.  Pooled funding includes the  Disabled Facilities Grant which provides 
housing adaptations and related support, and the Winter Pressures Grant to encourage 
proactive, joint planning ahead of winter and to minimise seasonal pressures.  Both the 
Disabled Facilities Grant and the Winter Pressures Grant are paid to the Council and 
pooled into the BCF/IBCF. 

5.2. In its policy statement published on 3 December 2020, the Government confirmed that 
the national conditions in 2021/22 will continue to set a minimum contribution to 
support social care from the NHS, to support the health and wellbeing of people with 
care needs and reduce the need for more acute care.   

5.3. The 2021/22 plan will cover one financial year and will be an evolution of the activity 
funded through the BCF in 2019/20 and 2020/21.  The Policy Framework and Planning 
Guidance are due to be published imminently. 

5.4. Subject to the outcome of the review, it is anticipated that the Council and the CCG will 
continue to fund activity in the following areas:  

 Prevention and Early Action 

 Community based care  

 Enhanced Care and Support to reduce avoidable admissions to hospital and 
facilitate timely discharge from hospital  

 Estates and Digital  
 

5.5. In determining the expenditure against planned activity for 21/22, the s75 Group will 
review the activity that has been funded though the BCF/IBCF since April 2020 and the 
impact that has had on health and wellbeing outcomes.   During the Covid pandemic 
for example, the BCF has continued to fund the voluntary and community sector to 
provide vital support to communities; to fund the continued development of the 
population health management system which has been used to identify cohorts in 
support of the COVID-19 vaccination programme; and has continued to fund activity 
which supports timely discharge from hospital to home or into an appropriate care 
setting. 

6. BCF and IBCF 2019/20 Budget Values 

6.1. For context, the table below provides a financial summary of the respective pooled 
budget financial values under review, based on 2019/20 planned source and 

application of funds. 

 CCG £000 Local Authority 

£000 

Total £000 

Source of Funds 22,056 16,615 38,671 

Application of Funds:    

Adult Social Care – contribution to 

Lewisham Council 

9,113  9,113 

Page 33

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Other recharges from Lewisham 

Council 

939  939 

Funding of NHS contracts 8,061  8,061 

Primary Care 1,170  1,170 

Other BCF Commitments 2,773  2,773 

DFG  1,339 1,339 

Winter Pressures Grant  1,368 1,368 

Additional LA Contribution  774 774 

IBCF   13,134 13,134 

Total Application of Funds 22,056 16,615 38,671 

 

6.2. In terms of prioritisation for areas of review this table establishes that including the 
adult social care contribution made by the CCG to Lewisham Council, and other 
recharges incurred, the Council is expending £26,667k (69% of the total pooled 
budget). Of the remaining £12,004k spent by the CCG, £9,231k (77%) is historically 
committed mainly into NHS contracts with a lesser amount incurred on primary care. 

7. Financial Position of CCG in 2021/22 

7.1. In terms of the BCF, the CCG has historically reported in its statutory accounts that the 
pooled budget has been fully spent in line with the budgeted allocation, including 
utilisation of the contingency fund.  This record underlines a historically challenging 
financial environment for the CCG and forms a backdrop against which identification of 
uncommitted budgets is a very significant challenge.   

7.2. The advent of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020/21 saw the suspension of normal 
financial planning routines undertaken by the NHS which were substituted with a 
temporary financial regime for 2020/21.  This regime will be rolled forward into 2021/22 
for at least the first quarter and possibly beyond.  Further financial planning guidance is 
awaited by the CCG, but it is anticipated that 2021/22 will be a challenging financial 
year for the CCG, and therefore in turn this financial outlook presents significant 
challenges in identifying uncommitted expenditure in 2021/22 and in consideration of 
opportunities for realignment of expenditure committed within CCG budget lines. 

8. Action on review to date 

8.1. Through S75 Agreement Management Group, the Council and the CCG  have been 
considering current commitments against the BCF and IBCF with a view to identifying 
potentially uncommitted budget going into 2021/22. The purpose in doing so is to:  

 Identify potential opportunities for realignment of existing expenditure within the 
funds, in line with national conditions and metrics and which support the Lewisham 

Page 34

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Health and Care Partnerhsip priorities (see Annex A) as set out in the Recovery 
Plan; and 

 Where opportunities for realignment of expenditure can be identified, to develop 
proposals for the budget to be utilised in a more effective way so as to deliver 
savings against other existing budget lines for Lewisham Borough Council and the 
CCG, both of which are parties to the pooled budget arrangements. 

8.2. Any realignment of expenditure will also need to meet any national conditions and 
metrics set out by NHS England for the BCF/IBCF 21/22 plan.    

8.3. In reviewing the BCF/IBCF, the S75 Group has also agreed that any realignment of 
expenditure must support proposals which generate identifiable and measureable 
savings (invest to save), and not simply to switch the source of funding for existing 
expenditure from other core budgets outside of the funds, into the pooled budgets to 
absorb any uncommitted budget identified.  

8.4. The S75 Group has stated that it expects proposals developed for realigning 
expenditure to take the form of a business case demonstrating how savings are to be 
generated, define milestones and measures of achievement, be subject to joint 
consideration through the S75 Agreement Management Group and, where necessary, 
seek approval though the CCG’s and Council’s governance arrangements. 

8.5. Early work that has been done has identified £500k of unallocated inflation from the 
20/21 budget that is used to support social care services and can thus release an 
equivalent sum from the ASC budget to contribute towards the agreed £1m budget 
reduction next year. 

9. Next Steps  

9.1. Officers in the Council and the CCG will continue to work through all expenditure lines 
within the BCF to identify potential areas where funding can be reinvested to support 
activity which would reduce expenditure elsewhere.  A similar piece of work will be 
undertaken in relation to the IBCF to identify where potential opportunities exist within 
those budgets.  

9.2. As part of this work, inflationary uplifts are being reviewed to ensure a prudent level of 
inflation, if needed, is being applied. 

9.3. The CCG is at a relatively early stage in its financial planning for 2021/22 as a 
consequence of the pandemic, but will endeavour to continue to keep under review any 
flexibility there may be as regards commitments from the BCF in 2021/22. 

9.4. Any investment proposals for realignment of BCF or IBCF funding will be supported by 
business cases where necessary, evidencing savings to be achieved.  Proposals will 
be considered by the s75 group and be subject to financial governance in each 
organisation as appropriate.  

10. Financial implications  

10.1. There are no direct financial implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report however those undertaking the review are mindful of 
the significant finanical pressures faced by local authorities and the NHS.  In 
undertaking the review, officers will seek to ensure that the BCF/IBCF budget is utilised 
in the most effective way so as to deliver value for money and where possible savings 
against other existing budget lines for Lewisham Borough Council and the CCG, both 
of whom are parties to the pooled budget arrangements. 

Page 35

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

11. Legal implications 

11.1. There are no direct legal implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report.  However members will wish to note that the 
governance of the BCF is set out in the associated s75 Agreement.  The draft 21/22 
BCF plan and associated expenditure will be presented and agreed by members of the 
s75 Board and subsequently approved by the Council and the CCG.   Once agreed, 
the BCF plan will be presented for sign off by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

12. Equalities implications 

12.1. The Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing the 
separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came into 
force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

12.2. The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

  eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act  

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not.  

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not. 

12.3. Tackling inequalities in health is one of the overarching purposes of integration.  Each 
new or existing service funded by the BCF or IBCF must have regard to the need to 
reduce inequalities in access to health and care and health and wellbeing outcomes. 

13. Climate change and environmental implications 

13.1. There are no specific climate change or environmental implications arising from this 
report or its recommendations. 

14. Crime and disorder implications 

14.1. There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report or its 
recommendations. 

15. Health and wellbeing implications  

15.1. The health and wellbeing implications of the review are outlined in the body of this 
report. 

16. Background papers 

16.1. None 

17. Report author and contact 

Tom Brown, Director of Community Services, Lewisham Council  

Sarah Wainer, Director of System Transformation, SEL CCG 

  

Page 36

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

 

Annex A: Lewisham Health and Care Partnership Recovery Plan Priorities 

Addressing Inequalities 

addressing inequalities and disparities in risks and outcomes,  

including a specific focus on our BAME communities and staff.   

Care Homes  

supporting care 

homes locally 

including co-

ordinated support 

and safeguarding 

of all residents 

and staff 

Prevention  

restarting 

services 

reduced or put 

on hold during 

lockdown with 

a focus on 

addressing 

inequalities 

Planned Care 

including proactive 

immunisations, 

cancer screening, 

Long Term 

Conditions support 

and management, 

postnatal and 

health checks 

Building 

Community 

Resilience  

recognising 

individual strength, 

knowledge and 

skills to ensure 

people have more 

control and a 

greater voice 

Children, Young 

People & 

Families 

catch-up 

immunisations, 

screening and 

weight 

management, 

mental health 

support and 

support to schools 

Implementation of 

the i-Thrive model 

across early help 

and emotional 

health services to 

develop a 

common language 

and enable better 

access to 

services, creating 

improved family 

resilience 

Frailty 

understanding 

and mapping mild, 

moderate and 

severe frailty, links 

to other 

conditions, and 

how best to 

provide more 

responsive care 

Diabetes 

including 

patients with 

undiagnosed 

diabetes, at 

risk of 

developing 

diabetes and 

with 

gestational 

diabetes 

Respiratory 

integrated 

respiratory 

community hubs, 

review of Lung 

Education Exercise 

Programme 

(LEEP), and 

implementation of 

multi-disciplinary 

working for 

respiratory patients 

Mental Health 

Front Door & Rapid 

Crisis Response, 

Community 

Support, 

Rehabilitation & 

Complex Care, 

including 

addressing 

inequalities and 

improving 

outcomes for BAME 

communities 

Safeguarding our communities and those who support them 

mitigating and managing the risks of a “second surge” of Covid-19 in Lewisham,  

including Test and Trace, Shielding, “Covid-19 Secure” services 

 

 

Page 37

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Healthier Communities Select Committee 

 

Timeline of decision-making 

HCSC Work Programme 2020/21 – draft agreed on 23 September 2020 

HCSC Work Programme 2020/21 – agreed by Business Panel 29 September 2020 

HCSC work programme 2020/21 reviewed at committee meetings on 23 September 2020; 
11 November 2020; 13 January 2021; and 25 February 2021. 

 

 

Report title: Select Committee work programme report 

Date: 25 February 2021 

Key decision: No.  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: Not applicable 

Contributors: John Bardens, Scrutiny Manager 

Outline and recommendations 

To advise members of the completed work programme for 2020/21 and to propose draft 
priority themes for the committee’s work programme for 2021/22. 

The Committee is asked to: 

 note the completed work programme attached at appendix A 

 review the issues covered over the course of 2020/21 

 review forthcoming key decisions set out in appendix B 

 consider priority themes for the 2021/22 work programme 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

1. Summary 

1.1. Each select committee is required to agree a work programme for submission to the 
Business Panel at the beginning of the municipal year. As this is the last meeting of the 
Healthier Communities Select Committee in 2020/21 members are being asked to put 
forward suggestions for the 2021/22 work programme. Please note, however, that the 
2021/22 work programme will not be formally agreed until the first meeting of 2021/22. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. The Committee is asked to:  

 note the completed work programme attached at appendix A 

 review the issues covered over the course of 2020/21 

 review forthcoming key decisions set out in appendix B 

 consider priority themes for the 2021/22 work programme 

3. The Work Programme 

3.1. Issues covered over the course of 2020/21: Due to the pandemic and the demand 
that this has placed on the council, each Select Committee has only met four, instead 
of five, times this year. In addition, during the latter part of the municipal year, select 
committees were asked to only consider business critical and/or urgent items. This has 
had an impact on the volume of work select committees have been able to complete 
this year. The completed work programme attached at appendix A. 

3.2. Key issues covered by the Healthier Communities Select Committee this year have 
included: budget cuts relevant to the remit of the committee; leisure centres; Lewisham 
health system recovery; health inequalities; pathology services; and adult social care. 

3.3. Timetable for setting the 2021/22 Work Programme: Five committee meetings will 
be scheduled for the 2021/22 municipal year. A draft work programme will be put 
forward at the first meeting of the municipal year, taking into account key local issues 
and the committee’s previous work.  

3.4. At this meeting members are asked to review the committee’s work over 2020/21 and 
consider suggestions/priority themes for 2021/22. Forthcoming key decisions are set out 
in appendix B. Work programme suggestions should be considered against the 
committee’s terms of reference (see section 4) and the prioritisation chart set out below, 
and be achievable in terms of the meeting time available.  

3.5. The Committee should give consideration to issues of local importance and decisions 
due to be made by Mayor and Cabinet. Items within the work programme should also be 
linked to the priorities of the Council’s Corporate Strategy for 2018-2022: 

Open Lewisham - Lewisham is a welcoming place of safety for all, where we celebrate 
the diversity that strengthens us. 

Tackling the housing crisis - Everyone has a decent home that is secure and 
affordable. 

Giving children and young people the best start in life - Every child has access to an 
outstanding and inspiring education, and is given the support they need to keep them 
safe, well and able to achieve their full potential. 

Building an inclusive local economy - Everyone can access high-quality job 
opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive local economy. 

Delivering and defending: health, social care and support - Ensuring everyone 
receives the health, mental health, social care and support services they need. 

Making Lewisham greener - Everyone enjoys our green spaces, and benefits from a 
healthy environment as we work to protect and improve our local environment. 

Building safer communities - Every resident feels safe and secure living here as we 
work together towards a borough free from the fear of crime. 

Page 40

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/open-lewisham
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/tackling-the-housing-crisis
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/giving-children-and-young-people-the-best-start-in-life
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-an-inclusive-local-economy
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/delivering-and-defending-health-social-care-and-support
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/making-lewisham-greener
https://lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/corporate-strategy/our-priorities/building-safer-communities


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

 

 

Page 41

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

4. Healthier Communities Select Committee terms of reference 

4.1. The Council’s constitution sets out the Committee’s powers as defined by the terms of 
reference (set out below). The Committee should familiarise itself with the terms of 
reference and consider its remit when selecting items for scrutiny. 

4.2. The Committee is also required to review proposals for substantial changes in services 
and decide whether or not consultation is required in the instance that those changes 
will have a significant impact on local people.  

Healthier Communities Select Committee terms of reference: 

(a) To fulfill all of the Overview and Scrutiny functions in relation to the provision of 
service by and performance of health bodies providing services for local people. These 
functions shall include all powers in relation to health matters given to the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee by any legislation but in particular the NHS Act 2006 
as amended, the Health and Social Care Act 2012, the Care Act 2014 and regulations 
made under that legislation, and any other legislation in force from time to time. For the 
avoidance of doubt, however, decisions to refer matters to the Secretary of State in 
circumstances where a health body proposes significant development or significant 
variation of service may only be made by full Council.  

(b) To review and scrutinise the decisions and actions of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and to make reports and recommendations to the Council and/or Mayor and 
Cabinet.  

(c) To review and scrutinise in accordance with regulations made under Section 244 
NHS Act 2006 matters relating to the health service in the area and to make reports 
and recommendations on such matters in accordance with those regulations  

(d) Require the attendance of representatives of relevant health bodies at meetings of 
the select committee to address it, answer questions and listen to the comments of 
local people on matters of local concern.  

(e) With the exception of matters pertaining to the Council’s duty in relation to special 
educational needs, to fulfill all of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny functions in 
relation to social services provided for those 19 years old or older including but not 
limited to services provided under the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970, 
Children Act 2004, National Assistance Act 1948, Mental Health Act 1983, NHS and 
Community Care Act 1990, NHS Act 2006, Health and Social Care Act 2012 and any 
other relevant legislation in place from time to time.  

(f) To fulfill all of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny functions in relation to the lifelong 
learning of those 19 years or over (excluding schools and school related services).  

(g) To receive referrals from the Healthwatch and consider whether to make any 
report/recommendation in relation to such referral (unless the referral relates solely to 
health services for those aged under 19 years of age, in which case the referral from 
the Healthwatch should be referred to the Children and Young People Select 
Committee .  

(h) To review and scrutinise the Council’s public health functions.  

(i) Without limiting the remit of this Select Committee, its terms of reference shall 
include Overview and Scrutiny functions in relation to: people with learning difficulties; 
people with physical disabilities; mental health services; the provision of health 
services by those other than the Council; provision for elderly people; the use of 
Section 75 NHS Act 2006 flexibilities to provide services in partnership with health 
organisations; lifelong learning of those aged 19 years or more (excluding schools and 
school related services); Community Education Lewisham; other matters relating to 
Health and Adult Care and Lifelong Learning for those aged 19 years or over.  

Page 42

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

(j) Without limiting the remit of the Select Committee, to hold the Executive to account 
for its performance in relation to the delivery of Council objectives in the provision of 
adult services and health and lifelong learning.  

NB In the event of there being overlap between the terms of reference of this select 
committee and those of the Children and Young People Select Committee, the 
Business Panel shall determine the Select Committee which shall deal with the matter 
in question.  

5. Financial implications  

5.1. There are no direct financial implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work programme will have 
financial implications and these will need to be considered as part of the reports on 
those items 

6. Legal implications 

6.1. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, all scrutiny select committees must 
devise and submit a work programme to the Business Panel at the start of each 
municipal year. 

7. Equalities implications 

7.1. Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing the 
separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came into 
force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

7.2. The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

7.3. There may be equalities implications arising from items on the work programme and all 
activities undertaken by the Select Committee will need to give due consideration to 
this. 

8. Climate change and environmental implications 

8.1. There are no direct climate change or environmental implications arising from the 
implementation of the recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work 
programme may have climate change implications and these will need to be 
considered as part of the reports on those items. 

9. Crime and disorder implications 

9.1. There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from the implementation of 
the recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work programme may 
have crime and disorder implications and these will need to be considered as part of 
the reports on those items. 

10. Health and wellbeing implications  

10.1. There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from the implementation 
of the recommendations in this report. Items on the Committee’s work programme may 
have health and wellbeing implications and these will need to be considered as part of 

Page 43

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

the reports on those items. 

11. Report author and contact 
11.1. If you have any questions about this report please contact: John Bardens, 020 8314 

9976 john.bardens@lewisham.gov.uk.   

Page 44

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:john.bardens@lewisham.gov.uk


Healthier Communities Select Committee work programme 2020/21

Item Type Priority Delivery 23-Sep 11-Nov 13-Jan 25-Feb

Confirmation of Chair and Vice Chair Constitutional req CP5 Sep

Work programme 2020-21 Constitutional req CP5 Sep

Financial stabilisation - budget update and medium 

term plan
Standard item CP5 Sep

Lewisham system recovery plan Standard item CP5 Sep

Leisure centres performance management Standard item CP5 Sep

Safeguarding referral M&C response CP5 Sep

Budget cuts proposals Standard item CP5 Nov

The scope of the Birmingham and Lewisham 

African & Caribbean Health Inequalities Review 
Standard item CP5 Nov

Pathology arrangements Standard item CP5 Nov

Adult social care review update Standard item CP5 Feb

Better Care Fund review update Standard item CP5 Feb

Information reports, briefings and visits Type Priority Delivery 

Lewisham Adult Safeguarding Board (LASB) 

annual report

Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 Sep

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust (LGT) quality 

account

Performance 

monitoring 
CP5

South London and Maudsley NHS Trust (SLaM) 

quality account

Performance 

monitoring 
CP5

Adult Learning Lewisham (ALL) annual report
Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 tbc

Migrant charging update
Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 tbc

Annual public health report
Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 tbc `

Item completed

Item on-going

Proposed timeframe 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
  

 
 

 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 

   
 

Forward Plan February 2021 - May 2021 
 
 
This Forward Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take during the next four months.  
 
Anyone wishing to make representations on a decision should submit them in writing as soon as possible to the relevant contact officer (shown as number (7) in 
the key overleaf). Any representations made less than 3 days before the meeting should be sent to Kevin Flaherty 0208 3149327, the Local Democracy Officer, 
at the Council Offices or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk. However the deadline will be 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 47



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

December 2020 
 

Broadway Theatre works 
update 
 

13/01/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Claudia Lynch, Project 
Officer Capital 
Programme Delivery and 
Councillor Andre Bourne, 
Cabinet member for 
Culture, Jobs and Skills 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

CCTV IP Modernisation plan 
 

13/01/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Daniel Fish-Halvorsen, 
Public Space CCTV 
Manager and Councillor 
Brenda Dacres, Cabinet 
Member for Safer 
Communities 
 

 
  

 

June 2020 
 

Extension of Resurfacing and 
Footways Contract 
 

13/01/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Louise McBride, Head of 
Highways & Transport 
and Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 

 
  

 

November 2020 
 

Leisure Management 
Arrangements 
 

13/01/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Lee, Director of 
Communities, 
Partnerships and Leisure 
and Councillor Andre 
Bourne, Cabinet member 
for Culture, Jobs and 
Skills (job share) 
 

 
  

 

October 2020 
 

The Future of PLACE/Ladywell 
parts 1 & 2 
 

13/01/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Karen Barke, Head of 
Strategic Development 
and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 
 

 
  

 

P
age 48



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

October 2020 
 

Schools Minor Works 
Programme 2020 
 

13/01/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kplom Lotsu, SGM 
Capital Programmes and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Permission to extend current 
Removal, Storage and Disposal 
of Abandoned Vehicles and 
other Nuisance Vehicle 
Services Contract 
 

26/01/21 
Executive Director 
for Housing, 
Regeneration & 
Environment 
 

Martin Skipper and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 
 

 
  

 

January 2021 
 

COVID-19 Related Contract 
Extension for IHASS Floating 
Support Service providing 
Tenancy Sustainment and 
Floating Support to 150 Adults 
with Support Needs. 
 

26/01/21 
Executive Director 
for Community 
Services 
 

Sarah Miran, 
Commissioning Manager 
and Councillor Chris 
Best, Deputy Mayor and 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Council Tax Base, the NNDR 
Tax Base & Discounts for 
Second Homes and Empty 
Homes. 
 

20/01/21 
Council 
 

Katharine Nidd, Strategic 
Procurement and 
Commercial Services 
Manager and Councillor 
Amanda De Ryk, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

2020/21 Budget 
 

03/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

P
age 49



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

December 2020 
 

2020/21 Budget Cuts Proposals 
 

03/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Contract Award works to 
Council buildings and schools 
funded by Public Sector 
Decarbonisation Scheme 
 

03/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Martin O'Brien, Climate 
Resilience Manager and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

2020/21 Budget Update 
 

10/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

December 2019 
 

Additions of new buildings to 
Local List St Lukes Church 
 

10/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Joanna Ecclestone, 
Senior Conservation 
Officer and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Housing & 
Planning 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Approval of s106 funding for  
housing development 
 

10/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Julie Nash and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Housing & 
Planning 
 

 
  

 

September 2020 
 

Catford Regeneration 
Partnership Ltd Business Plan 
2020-21 
 

10/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kplom Lotsu, SGM 
Capital Programmes and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 

 
  

 

P
age 50



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

November 2020 
 

Determined Admissions 
Arrangements 2022-23 
 

10/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Linda Fuller, Team 
leadert Admissions & 
Appeals and Councillor 
Chris Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children's 
Services and School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Highways and Traffic Works 
Partnering Contract 

The report reviews the recent 
and ongoing Highways 
Maintenance & Planned 
Works procurement exercise, 
assesses future strategic need 
and recommends a 
procurement route to benefit 
the council. 

10/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Zahur Khan, Director of 
Public Realm and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Modern Slavery Statement 
2021 
 

10/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Karen Barke, Head of 
Strategic Development 
and Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Safer Communities 
 

 
  

 

November 2020 
 

State of the Highways 
Infrastructure - Asset 
management Strategy 
 

10/02/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Louise McBride, Head of 
Highways & Transport 
and Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

2020/21 Budget 
 

24/02/21 
Council 
 

Kathy Freeman, 
Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 

 
  

 

P
age 51



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

June 2020 
 

Climate emergency action plan 
update 
 

10/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Martin O'Brien, Climate 
Resilience Manager and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 

 
  

 

October 2020 
 

A21 Development Strategy 
 

10/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Syme, Strategic 
Planning Manager and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 
 

 
  

 

September 2020 
 

Building for Lewisham 
Package A s105 & demolition 
budget approval 
 

10/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Karen Barke, Head of 
Strategic Development 
and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 
 

 
  

 

June 2020 
 

Conversion of 77 Amersham 
Road and 114-116 Manor 
Avenue to temporary housing 
 

10/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Masini, 
Regeneration and New 
Supply Manager and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 
 

 
  

 

November 2020 
 

Excalibur Estate - Phase 3 
Development 
 

10/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Ringwood, 
Housing Delivery 
Manager and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Housing & 
Planning 
 

 
  

 

P
age 52



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

August 2020 
 

Occupational Health Employee 
Assistance Programme 
contract 
 

10/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Acting 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

 
  

 

June 2020 
 

Options appraisal of the 
security contract 
 

10/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Chris Damri, SGM Asset 
Strategy and Technical 
Support and Councillor 
Amanda De Ryk, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

November 2020 
 

Small Sites SPD 
 

10/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

James Masini, 
Regeneration and New 
Supply Manager and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Lewisham Homes Business 
Plan 2021-22 
 

24/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Councillor Colin Elliott 
and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 
 

 
  

 

November 2019 
 

Approval to appoint operator 
for concessions contract at the 
lake, Beckenham Place Park 
 

24/03/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Gavin Plaskitt, 
Programme Manager and 
Councillor Sophie 
McGeevor, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 

 
  

 

December 2020 
 

Approval of a new Housing 
Allocations Scheme' 
 

26/05/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Michael Moncrieff, 
Housing Policy & 
Partnerships Manager 
and Councillor Paul Bell, 

 
  

 

P
age 53



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 
 

October 2019 
 

Mayow Road Supported Living 
Service Parts 1 & 2 
 

14/07/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Deputy Mayor 
and Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 
 

 
  

 

P
age 54



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

      

      

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2021
	2 Declarations of interest
	4 Adult social care review update
	ASC Review - Procurement Update for HCSC 250221

	5 Better Care Fund review update
	6 Select Committee work programme
	06 Appendix A - completed work programme 2020-21 - 250221
	06 Appendix B - Key Decision Plan - 250221


